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19 February 2025 
 
Dear Collette,  
 
Thank you for your letter of 3 February regarding our progress with implementing the 
Scottish Welfare Fund Action Plan. I have provided a response below to the queries 
raised. I also note that the committee wish to monitor monthly administrative data on 
the Scottish Welfare Fund to track budget pressures. I can confirm this data is 
published online and is available at: Scottish Welfare Fund and Discretionary Housing 
Payments: monthly data - gov.scot. 
 
I note the concerns from CoSLA referenced in your letter. The changes proposed in 
the new statutory guidance have been reviewed by a multi-stakeholder group which 
includes CoSLA. In terms of having a clearer definition of the ‘high most compelling’ 
priority rating, as CoSLA themselves identify in their letter to your committee, a new 
section and guidance on the ‘high most compelling’ rating has been produced. The 
changes that we are making to the guidance are envisaged to help decision makers 
make timely decisions, with clearer guidance including the stage by stage decision 
making process as well as highlighting our policy intent on adopting a proportionate 
and trust based approach when gathering evidence.  
 
We do understand that the Scottish Welfare Fund continues to receive a high level of 
demand, as an essential source of support for people in need and this pressure has 
been exacerbated by the effects of UK Government welfare policy decisions. We will 
continue to closely monitor spend and demand trends for the fund and keep the 
sustainability of the budget under review. We are committed to continue working in 
partnership with CoSLA to support people in crisis.  
 
Responses to queries raised 
 
1. the timescales for the production of tables to help decision makers determine 

eligibility under low-income criteria where a qualifying benefit is not under payment, 
with rates for all local authorities; 
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These will be published alongside the statutory guidance. As noted, the revised 
statutory guidance is due to be published in April 2025. We have committed to review 
the statutory guidance on an annual basis.  

2. the Scottish Government’s response to the issue raised by COSLA about the
provision of annual funding to cover additional costs for local authorities;

The standing statutory guidance review committee, reviewed the current methodology 
for calculating cost of living award rates for Crisis Grants and agreed that a fairer 
method for determining award rates that meets people’s needs and takes into account 
the cost of living is needed. We have not taken away the discretion for decision 
makers, but the proposed guidance welcomed by the committee, will ensure that 
awards more closely meet needs. No other changes to the statutory guidance are 
expected that result in additional costs to the budget or for local authorities. The 
provision of an additional £20 million funding in 2024-25, including £2.5 million for 
administration of the fund, should assist Local Authorities with administering and 
delivering the fund and, as noted above, I will keep the sustainability of funding under 
review moving forward.   

3. the planned completion dates of each of the remaining actions;

As already noted we are close to completing workstream 1 and 2. In terms of 
workstream 3 (Creating a New Data, Audit and Monitoring Approach), there have been 
improvements made against all three actions within this workstream, however two of 
these actions remain longer term commitments as they focus on a new process for 
data collection in conjunction with local authorities and development of an approach 
to ensure that there is a commitment to learning and improvement, a continuous focus. 

4. any guidance provided to local authorities in relation to the use of the additional
£20m added to the Fund for 2024-25.

Our budget allocation letter for the additional funds was reviewed with CoSLA and sent 
to local authorities in December 2024 (Annex A). We noted that the funding is 
calculated using an agreed formula of the most recent income domain of the Scottish 
Index of Multiple Deprivation (SIMD) and this additional funding will enable local 
authorities to provide more flexible local support through Crisis Grants and Community 
Care Grants to people in need.  

I hope you find the above information helpful. 

Yours sincerely 

SHIRLEY-ANNE SOMERVILLE 
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